AGENDA

CCESP Advisory Council Meeting
March 28, 2023, at 9:00 am — 10:30 am
Clinton County Office Annex, 111 S. Nelson Avenue, Wilmington OH 45177
Entrance B, Community Room A

Meeting number: 2337 026 8946
Password: ESHYEXPm735 (37493976 from video systems)

Join by phone
1-844-621-3956 United States Toll Free
+1-415-655-0001 US Toll
Access code: 233 702 68946

CALL TO ORDER Nicole Rodman

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
+»» December 13, 2022, Minutes (Action Needed) Nicole Rodman

QUARTERLY REPORTS
+* Program Dashboard & Financial Report Ken Wilson & Ronnie Spears
¢ Program Update Report Lisa Portune & Ken Wilson

- 2023 Services with a Capacity Problem (Action Needed)
- Senior Center Funding Status Update

- Title Il RFP
OLD BUSINESS Nicole Rodman
NEW BUSINESS
+* Service Specification Changes (Action Needed) Lisa Portune?

- Home Delivered Meals
- Adult Day Services

++» State Budget Update Suzanne Burke
- Healthy Aging Grants
- PACE Expansion
- Rate Increases

+» Community Engagement Haley Allgood

+* Maximum Reimbursement Rates Ronnie Spears

¢ Updated Sliding Fee Scale Ronnie Spears

¢ Public Meeting Requirements Ken Wilson

¢ Conflict of Interest / Confidentiality Forms Nicole Rodman
HEARING THE PUBLIC Nicole Rodman
ADJOURNMENT Nicole Rodman

NEXT MEETING
June 20, 2023



https://councilonaging.webex.com/councilonaging/j.php?MTID=m5a9c73f158d62b605928521d47051a6c

MINUTES

CCESP ADVISORY COUNCIL MEETING

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 13, 2022 @ 9:00 A.M.

ATTENDANCE
Members Present: COA Staff: Guests:
Bob Baker Nan Cahall
Gene Breckel Carl McCullough
Ray Camp Lisa Portune
Sue Caplinger Stephanie Seyfried
Donald Gephart Ronnie Spears
Tim Hawk Ken Wilson
Nicole Rodman
Duane Weyand
Excused: Facilitator: Scribe:
Nicole Rodman Heather Junker
Absent:
CALL TO ORDER / WELCOME

The December 13, 2022, meeting of the CCESP Advisory Council was called to order by Nicole Rodman,
Chair, at 9:03 a.m.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Nicole Rodman called for a motion to approve the September 20,2022, CCESP Advisory Council meeting
minutes.

Motion: Gene Breckel made a motion to the September 20, 2022, minutes as presented.
Second: Bob Baker seconded the motion.
Action:  The minutes were unanimously approved as presented.

QUARTERLY REPORTS

Program Dashboard & Financial Report

Ken reviewed the Program Dashboard (please see handout for full details). The home care provider
network referrals and capacity chart is different from what has previously been reported. We have
incorporated looking at the overall home care need including people going into Consumer Directed Care
and not just those waiting on home care assistance. Ken noted that Clinton County is performing better
than the other four counties in our region when it comes to the amount of individuals not matched with
a home care provider. Nicole asked what the options are for those that are not matched with a home
care provider. Ken explained that we are adding more providers. Also, if the client is eligible and can



manage it, we recommend the Consumer Directed Care Program. Ken predicts we will see more growth
in that option and that’s why we’ve included data around it in the chart. Nicole then asked how much
HCA a client receives- a few hours at a time or does it depend on the client? Ken advised that typically
an ESP client will receive a couple of hours once a week, but it does depend on the individual’s needs.
Duane asked if there are exit interviews being done with these aides that are leaving. In his experience
with family receiving services in another county, aides are leaving because of an odd reason. Ken
advised this is a national problem that’s very complex. For some people wages were the issue and some
left the field altogether to work at places such as Amazon or Target. Tim asked how Clinton County
compares to the other counties as far as distribution of services. Ken explained that there is a lot of
similarity. There is a higher usage of Electronic Monitoring Systems compared to other counties, but the
other services are at similar levels.

Carl reviewed the Financial Report. There were no questions or concerns.

Program Update Report

Lisa gave an overview of the Program Update Report including the draft 2023 RFP Plan & Bidding Criteria
as well as the draft 2023 Schedule of Provider Monitoring Reviews (please refer to handout for full
detail). Ken noted that as of yesterday, 57 out of the 81 clients that needed a new provider due to
Clinton County Community Action terminating services have been placed so the number is going down.

Tim asked if Beaugard’s BBQ is still a provider as he heard they were closing. Ken advised that they were
for a period of time during our restaurant meal program utilizing CARES Act funding, but that program
has since ended.

Bob asked for further explanation of the Home Care Assistance Hourly Rates chart. Lisa explained that
with Clinton County Community Action’s decision to terminate services, there were some questions that
had come up. We looked at private rates, other rates within Clinton County, and other ESP programs to
show that our rate for the Clinton County ESP program is appropriate. Nicole asked if the bid rate
included per unit of care, administrative costs, and what they pay the aide. Lisa explained that it does as
the providers were required to roll that into their bid rate. Bob then asked if we currently have a waiting
list. Ken advised that we do not have a waiting list at this time except for those who are waiting for a
provider that has sufficient staff to start services. Sue asked if anyone tried to negotiate with Clinton
County Community Action when they stated they were terminating services. Lisa advised that both her
and Ken met with them in person. Ken added that they were offered a contract at $36.24 an hour and
they decided to give notice. Gene asked if they were ending that service altogether or just with COA.
Ken advised that they ended the service just with COA.

Stephanie gave a quick update on the Laundry Delivery Service. We currently do not have anyone to
service Clinton County, but we are working to find a provider who can expand to serve the area.

Stephanie also gave a quick update on AddnAide. Nicole noted that AddnAide has not yet been

implemented yet as the Commissioners requested further data before we utilize funding to promote the
program. Ken explained that we are hoping to get back with them early next year with that data.

Page 2



Provider Quality Report

Lisa reviewed the Provider Quality Report (please see handout for full details). Nicole asked if CareStar
was getting ready to come into the equation to provide services to which Lisa advised they will be
starting in January. There were no other further questions or concerns.

Market Penetration & Five-Year Levy Projections

Ken reviewed the Market Penetration Report. This graph shows the comparison between the number of
people served by the levy and the number of older adults with a disability in the community. The
current Market Penetration is up from last year but still down from the height of the pandemic when
older adults needed temporary services.

Ken reviewed the Five-Year Levy Projections. We are in the final month of the current cycle. The cycle
started with a fund balance of $839,000 and will be ending with a fund balance of $108,000. This will
roll over into the next levy cycle. At prior meetings, we opted to push the senior center grant project to
2023 due to insufficient revenue which was a good decision. That would have left us with an
uncomfortably low fund balance. The next five-year cycle will see an increase in levy revenue. Based on
the auditor’s office, we should see almost $2 million available for the levy program. This is something
we’ll watch closely next year to see how the receipts come in and hopefully we will see a higher number.
Based on these projections, we will be establishing a waiting list starting in 2026. This is consistent with
what we said when we originally set up the new levy. When we talked about levy options, we knew we
were under what we felt we needed to get through the cycle. Ken added that it is way too early to say
for sure if there will be a waiting list because there are so many factors built into this.

OLD BUSINESS

Senior Center Grant Applications

The Advisory Council reviewed and discussed each of the four grant applications (please see handouts
for full details). With $50,000 set aside to do this, Nicole is going to assume that with these bids,
considering the timeframe that has passed, some of those costs may have gone up. She thinks they can
still evaluate and decide an amount they would award to each entity. Obviously, they will not
necessarily be able to cover the entire cost of what they're requesting. Tim asked if they plan to award
the whole amount or just partial amounts. He also asked how the provider would cover the rest of the
project cost if they weren’t awarded the full amount. Nicole stated her thought was that when they go
to do this next time and make some tweaks to the process, to ask the providers how they would
supplement the rest of the cost if they don’t get awarded the full amount. Her worry is that if they get
awarded partial funds and can’t cover the rest, what will they do with that funding. Donald suggested
when they go to do this next year, put a clause in there that states if the provider doesn’t have the
remaining amount, they have the option to rescind their request.

Upon further discussion the group unanimously decided to fund the parking lot for the Blanchester
Senior Center and the bathroom accessibility for the New Vienna Community Center. Nicole asked that
we put this topic back on the agenda for the next meeting so the group can fine tune the application
process and set additional parameters. Ken advised that we would add it as well as reach out to all of
the applicants to inform them of the Advisory Council’s decision.

Page 3



NEW BUSINESS

2023 Meeting Dates

Nicole reviewed the 2023 Meeting Dates. The Advisory Council agreed to the dates and times for 2023.

HEARING THE PUBLIC

There was no one from the public present who wanted to speak.

ADJOURNMENT

With no further business to discuss, Nicole adjourned the meeting at 10:34 a.m.

NEXT MEETING

March 21, 2023

Page 4



=\

Council on Aging

Clinton County ESP

Program and Financial Report
Quarter 4, 2022 (Oct - Dec 2022)



"\ Clinton County ESP
CO Quarter 4, 2022 (Oct - Dec 2022)

Council on Aging EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Highlighted Findings

1. Census Trends
A. Compared to last year (Quarter 4, 2021), census decreased by -20 clients (from 399 to 419) or -4.8%.

B. Compared to last quarter (Quarter 3, 2022), census had no change in clients (from 419 to 419) or 0%.

2. Fast Track Home
A. Average length of stay has decreased by -16 days compared to Quarter 3, 2022 (from 54 to 38).

B. New Enroliments increased from Q3, 2022 to Q4, 2022 (from 12 to 19).

C. Total clients who transferred to ESP from FTH decreased from Quarter 3, 2022 (from 11 to 6).

3. Financials

A. Total Levy Revenue: The amount needed to be drawn down from the levy is $1.6 million through the fourth quarter,
as compared to the budgeted amount of $1.8 million. The variance is under budget by $211,165 or 11.5%.

B. Total Expenses: The expenses incurred through the fourth quarter is $1.85 million as compared to $1.97 million
in the budget. The variance is under budget by $125,827 or 6.4%.

C. Purchase Services: The projected expenses were lower than budget by $155,207 or 10.0% as compared to budget.

20f10



Clinton County ESP

( O Quarter 4, 2022 (Oct - Dec 2022)

Council on Aging 1 RADITIONAL ESP CENSUS TRENDS

Quarter-End Census by Program

I I S T S R R B S
ESP 399 412 419 419

FTH 4 11 6 12
Medicaid Programs 132 175 136 146
Passport 14 12 13 15

Assisted Living 1 1 0 0
Molina 45 88 50 52

Aetna 72 74 73 79

Quarter-End Census, New Enrollments, and Disenrollments®

I S T R S S S

Quarter-End Census
New Enrollments 45 43 34 46
Disenrollments 47 29 27 42

Disenrollment Outcomes

— e

Deceased
Transferred to PSP/Other Program 2 3 3 11
Moved or No Longer Eligible 3 1 2 2
Need Otherwise Met 12 8 3 7
Client Refused/Declined Services 2 3 2
Dissatisfied with Svc/Program 0 0 1
Entered Nursing Facility 3 5 4
Total 47 29 27 42
50 — Deceased
Transferred to PSP/Other

g 40 - Program

2 Il Moved or No Longer Eligible

g 30 Need Otherwise Met

K ] Client Refused/Declined Services

S _ Il Dissatisfied with Svc/Program

§ 20 - Il Entered Nursing Facility

2

3 10 _—— e

gl T

0 _ |
1 2 3 4
2022

30of 10



Clinton County ESP
CO Quarter 4, 2022 (Oct - Dec 2022)
o v e TRADITIONAL ESP SERVICE TRENDS

Average Monthly Cost per Client!

$400
2288 $324.00 $346.66 $392.75 $391.45
$100
$0
1 > 5 .

2022

Distinct Clients Served by Service Group™?

77 S S S S SN S N S—

Consumer Directed Care

Electronic Monitoring 267 256 260 267
Home Care Assistance 245 248 255 237
Home Delivered Meals 107 133 140 147
Home Medical Equipment 15 16 34 22
Other Services 10 20 17 19
Transportation 10 7 7 7

All Services (Unduplicated) 404 407 424 421

Units Billed by Service Group* Please see the notes page for unit of measure descriptions by service.

I IS S I S R R R S

Consumer Directed Care 1,889 1,752 2,463 1,569
Electronic Monitoring 823 802 831 824
Home Care Assistance 4,541 4,846 5,135 4,205
Home Delivered Meals 6,290 8,118 8,442 8,623
Home Medical Equipment 16 19 37 25

Other Services 11 22 20 21

Transportation 111 97 99 135

Dollars Paid by Service Group (Purchased Services)'

. T S
[ owe] 1 [z | s+ |

Consumer Directed Care $27,477 $27,914 $39,974 $26,266
Electronic Monitoring $19,445 $19,029 $19,853 $19,805
Home Care Assistance $145,136 $151,197 $168,898 $139,511
Home Delivered Meals $61,528 $79,527 $125,600 $132,772
Home Medical Equipment $6,128 $7,163 $8,854 $9,603

Other Services $12,500 $22,425 $25,105 $42,485
Transportation $10,120 $11,240 $15,390 $19,165
All Services $282,334 $318,494 $403,674 $389,607

4 0of 10



Clinton County ESP FTH

CO Quarter 4, 2022 (Oct - Dec 2022)

Council on Aging FAST TRACK HOME CENSUS TRENDS

Total Clients Served, New Enrollments, Disenrollments

e r——— L e L e Lo

New Enrollments
Disenroliments 6 5 17 14
5 1 11 6
83.33% 20.00% 64.71% 42.86%

Clients Transferred to ESP

Enrollment by Setting

Miami Valley Hospital 0 2 0 0
Spousal Meals 0 0 1 5
Clinton Memorial Hospital 3 3 2 7
The Christ Hospital 0 1 0 1
TriHealth Hospital Network 1 0 0 1
University of Cincinnati Hospital Network 0 1 0 0
Other Hospital 0 1 0 0
Skilled Nursing Facilities 1 2 7 3
Rehabilitation Facilities 0 0 1 1
Not Captured 0 1 1 1
Total 5 11 12 19
Average Length of Stay
80

2 60 > 24

8 Target: 60 or below 44

s 38

o 40

2

£

3 20

0
1 2 3 4

2022

50f 10



Clinton County ESP FTH

CO Quarter 4, 2022 (Oct - Dec 2022)

FAST TRACK HOME SERVICE TRENDS

Council on Aging

Distinct Clients Served by Service Group

I S I N BN

Electronic Monitoring
Home Care Assistance
Home Delivered Meals
Home Medical Equipment
Other Services

Transportation
All Services (Unduplicated)

Units Billed by Service Group Reference: Please see page 9 for unit of measure descriptions by service.

o \
I S N N RN

Electronic Monitoring
Home Care Assistance
Home Delivered Meals
Home Medical Equipment
Other Services

Transportation

Dollars Paid by Service Group (Purchased Services)

T RS RS R N RS

Electronic Monitoring
Home Care Assistance
Home Delivered Meals
Home Medical Equipment
Other Services
Transportation

All Services

[EnY

o O O r O P W

A

O O kB O M O

$100
$104
$0
$80
$0
$0
$284

N

g O O N N O W

49

$100
$0
$491
$97
$0
$0
$688

w

P N B~ 00O W b

15

26
294

12

$150
$787
$2,942
$376
$850
$2,232
$7,337

12

17

46
253

$176
$1,366
$3,520
$648
$585
$292
$6,587

6 of 10



Clinton County ESP

( O Quarter 4, 2022 (Oct - Dec 2022)

council on Aging Traditional ESP PERFORMANCE TRENDS

Average Number of Days from Intake Call to the Enrollment Assessment’

20+ 18 20 -
2 151 2 151 b
) 15 [a)
“E 10,Target12 4 'E 10,Target12
3 2
IS £
z 5] 2 5]
0 0
1 2 3 4
2022 2022

Home Care Provider Network Referrals and Capacity

# Clients in Need of # Clients Not % of Clients Not % of Clts % of Clts
Quarter HCA & CDC Matched with a Matched with a Receiving Receiving
Provider Provider Traditional HCA CDC
2022 2 212 22 8% 86% 6%
2022 3 293 25 9% 86% 6%
2022 4 300 45 15% 79% 6%

Home Delivered Meals - Client Satisfaction Survey Results

\
\ Qe — 1 ] 2 ] 3 [ i |
Overall Satisfaction 89.46% 97.83% 94.47% 93.53%
Good Choice of Meals Available 60.00% 82.61% 85.71% 79.31%

Home Care Assistance - Client Satisfaction Survey Results

I ] N S N R AN R
Overall Satisfaction 96.02% 96.59% 93.65% 93.97%
Aide is Dependable 98.41% 100.00% 94.12% 96.49%

Medical Transportation - Client Satisfaction Survey Results

R

e r—— e T T T

Overall Satisfaction 100.00% 83.33% 100.00%
Service Returns Client Home Promptly 100.00% n/a 100.00% 100.00%

' As of Q4 2022, Average number of days from Intake Call to the Enroliment Assessment data collection process been changed.
2As of Q1 2023, Number of Clients still waiting to be matched with a Provider has been reduced down to four clients.

70f10



Clinton County ESP

CO Quarter 4, 2022 (Oct - Dec 2022)

oo e MEDICARE BENEFIT COST SAVINGS

ESP Cost Savings Analysis

Referrals

L

Number of Members Assisted

Services Awarded

e L

Emergency Response Service
Medical Transportation 3 2 4 4
Total 10 6

Annual Cost Savings

Total Cost Savings $24,199

8 of 10



X Clinton County ESP
CO A Quarter 4, 2022 (Oct. - Dec. 2022)

council on Aging  FINANCIALS: based on actual revenue & expenses as of December 31, 2022"

Annual Actual Annual Budget Budget Variance % Budget Variance
Revenue
Tax Levy Appropriations $1,623,551 $1,834,715 ($211,165) -11.5%
Federal & State Funding
Title Il B $1,068 15,000 ($13,932) -92.9%
Title 11l C2 - Home Delivered Meals 78,606 65,718 12,888 19.6%
Title Il E - Caregiver Support 17,222 0 17,222 0.0%
Alzheimer's - 805 (805) -100.0%
Nutrition Services Incentive Program (NSIP) 36,967 15,708 21,259 135.3%
Senior Community Services (SCS) 12,371 10,000 2,371 23.7%
Other Federal (Title C2 Supplemental, Title Ill D, AARPA) 33,222 0 33,222 -100.0%
Client Contributions
Client Donations 101 215 (114 -53.0%
Co-Pays Received 44,118 30,891 13,227 42.8%
Total Revenue $1,847,225 $1,973,052 ($125,827) -6.4%
Expenses
Operating Expenses
COA Administrative $116,803 $124,760 $7,957 6.4%
Intake & Assessment 3,301 2,759 (542) -19.6%
FTH Case Management 45,184 56,776 11,592 20.4%
Case Management 287,828 239,441 (48,387) -20.2%
Total Operational Expenses $453,116 $423,736 ($29,380) 6.9%
Purchased Services
Homemaker-Hourly $542,259 $685,876 $143,617 20.9%
Personal Care -Hourly 60,358 130,814 70,456 53.9%
Respite-Hourly 7,088 19,045 11,958 62.8%
Home Medical Equipment 31,848 22,800 (9,048) -39.7%
Emergency Response Systems 78,031 93,487 15,456 16.5%
Minor Home Modifications 97,790 36,401 (61,389) -168.6%
Chore 4,725 18,055 13,330 73.8%
Home Delivered Meals 394,465 345,671 (48,794) -14.1%
Adult Day Service - 71,554 71,554 100.0%
Adult Day-Transportation - 1,951 1,951 100.0%
Medical Transportation 55,915 3,245 (52,669) -1622.9%
Consumer Directed Care 121,632 120,416 (1,215) -1.0%
Gross Purchased Services $1,394,109 $1,549,316 $155,207 10.0%
Gross Program Expenses $1,847,225 $1,973,052 $125,827 6.4%
Client Census 431 456 25 5.5%
Cost of Services per Client $281.81 $273.60 ($8.21) -3.0%

9 0of 10



‘\\ Clinton County ESP
CO Quarter 4, 2022 (Oct - Dec 2022)
REPORT NOTES

Council on Aging

1. Census Trends

A. Quarter-End Census by Program is a client count based on a one-day snapshot of clients with a status of 'Enrolled'
or 'Suspended' on the last day of the quarter. It is used as an approximation of how many clients are being served
on any given day.

1. The Service Trends section shows the client count based on billing data. This shows the number of clients whom
services were delivered and invoiced. Given these differences, the quarter-end census and the client count for all
services will not match.

B. New Enrollments are calculated by taking the total number of clients who have an enroliment date during the
guarter and an approved care plan.

C. Disenrollment Outcomes

1. All Other Reasons Not Listed includes: Dissatisfied with Service/Program, Refused Cost, Share/Verification,
Eviction, Health/Safety, and Unable to Meet Client Need.

2. Client Non-Compliant includes: Declined Call/Visit, Delinquent Balance, Refused, Transfer to Passport/Other
Program and Unable to Contact.

3. Adding the difference between New Enrollments and Disenrollments in a given quarter to the previous
Quarter-end Census may result in a discrepency due to the timing of census reporting and back dating
client enrollments and disenrollments.

2. Service Trends

A. Average Monthly Cost per Client is based on the average monthly cost of Intake and Assessment, Administration,
Care Management and Provider Services divided by the quarter-end census.

B. Clients Served by Service Group is based on billing data. These numbers represent the unduplicated client counts
within each service group and overall. The All Services client count will not equal the sum of the service group
subtotals because many clients receive more than one service.

C. Home Care includes homemaking, personal care, companion, and respite services.
D. Other Services includes Environmental Services and Independent Living Assistance (Hamilton only).

E. Dollars Paid by Service Group represents the total from the financial system. Clients Served and Units Billed
represent when service was provided, dollars paid represents when services were paid.

3. FTH Census Trends

A. Clients Enrolled in ESP is calculated by taking the clients who disenrolled from Fast Track Home within the quarter
then determining the clients who have an active registration with the traditional ESP.

B. Community Enrollment may include emergency referrals to ESP FastTrack service such as: Community
Paramedicine, APS referral or other agency referral for FTH specific services.

4. FTH Service Trends
A. Other Services includes Pest Control.

5. Unit of Measure Descriptions by Service

A. Adult Day - Number of Days

B. Consumer Directed Care - Number of Hours
C. Electronic Monitoring - Number of Months
D. Home Care - Number of Hours

E. Home Delivered Meals - Number of Meals
F. Medical Transportation - Number of Trips

6. N/A: This is displayed on a case-by-case basis, but is most frequently related to a rate or unit change.
The metric should display data in subsequent quarters after the change has taken effect.

10 of 10




Clinton County Program Update Report

March 2023

Homemaking/Personal Care/Respite is now Home Care Assistance (HCA)

American Maid is a new provider in Clinton County. They have hired additional staff and
are actively accepting referrals and serving clients for HCA in Clinton County.

CareStar Home Care is another new provider in Clinton County. They have started to pick
up referrals for HCA.

We have started the precertification process for Visiting Angels. They will serve in Clinton
County for HCA.

Currently, we have 6 active providers in the county, and we have zero clients waiting to
receive FTH HCA services and zero clients waiting for traditional HCA services.

Home Medical Equipment (HME)
We have contracted Tristate Maintenance for Home Medical Equipment to provide ramps.

Adult Day Services (ADS)

A Request for Applications (RFA) was published in February. The RFA gave current ADS
providers the opportunity to request ARPA funds for Capital Purchases and
Projects/Pilots that support innovation of social programming for the changing needs of
the older adults we serve prior to the publication of the Title 11l and ESP ADS RFP.
Applications were due March 10, 2023, and estimated award date is by March 31, 2023.

Electronic Monitoring Systems

Representatives from Guardian Medical Monitoring visited COA on 2/16/23 to share new
reporting capabilities which will inform Care Mangers of clients who have frequent falls,
those that are not in compliance with taking medications, and a monthly aggregate of alert
notifications. Guardian highlighted two new programs addressing engagement/social
isolation and virtual health monitoring and will continue to share opportunities to support
clients to remain safe in their homes.

Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program for 2023

In order to improve efficiency and improve the experience for the participants, COA is in
the process of re-structuring how applications are signing up for this program and how
they will receive their coupons. COA will host coupon distribution events in each of our
counties. These events will allow participants to apply and receive coupons the same day,



reducing administration time and reducing the number of coupon mailings to ensure
seniors have coupons to spend earlier in the season. Each approved participant receives
a value of $50.00 in coupon vouchers to spend on fresh fruits, vegetables, honey, and
fresh cut herbs at participating farmers markets in all 5 counties. Eligible participants must
be at least 60 years old, live in our region, and meet the income guidelines of 185% of the
federal poverty level.

Modernization of Home Delivered Meals and Congregate Meal Programs

As we discussed at the prior meeting, COA worked with the Livewell Collaborative in
2022 to develop a roadmap for modernizing our congregate and home delivered meal
programs. We hosted meetings in September, November, and December to collaborate
with our providers and community stakeholders in discussing and brainstorming ways to
modernize, streamline and innovate both simple and more challenging ideas to meet the
changing needs and desires of our aging adults.

A Request for Applications (RFA) was published in February. The RFA gave current
nutrition providers the opportunity to request ARPA funds for Capital Purchases and
Projects/Pilots that can generate more room for innovation and modernization of the
program prior to the publication of the Title Il and Home Delivered Meal RFP.
Applications were due March 10, 2023, and estimated award date is by March 31, 2023.

Updates to Home Delivered Meal Service Specification includes a change in responsibility
in obtaining a prescription for a therapeutic diet from the provider to the client. The
service specification includes links to the appropriate rules for quick reference and allows
the specification to remain current with any posted updates and changes to the rules.

Therapeutic Meal and Ohio Prescription Requirement Advocacy

COA and Meals on Wheels of SW OH & N KY have been working with our government
relations staff to discuss current therapeutic prescription requirements and desire to
remove and/or loosen this requirement. The goal of this rule evaluation is to provide
variety, increase choice, increase satisfaction, and decrease delay in providing
therapeutic meals. Research includes learning what surrounding states require. Kentucky
does not require a prescription for therapeutic meals. There has been contact with
legislatures and The Commonsense Initiative. The Commonsense Initiative has begun
conversations with ODA and ODM, both agencies have shown interest in learning more.
Through our research we have discovered that none of the surrounding states require
prescriptions for meals. This includes Kentucky, Michigan, Pennsylvania, and Indiana. We
have also started reaching out to the other AAAs in Ohio to gain their interest and
feedback with this advocacy initiative.

Grocery Delivery Service

Central Connections is contracted for grocery delivery service in Clinton Co. This program
allows an agency to assist a client with ordering groceries, picking them up safely, and
delivering them to the client’s residence. Assistance is provided if a client needs help putting
the groceries away.



e Central Connections has started advertising the program by sending out a bulk
mailing with information about the program to their 1500 clients informing them of
this opportunity.

2022 Provider Monthly Relief Payments

As previously reported, due to the downstream effects of the global pandemic on the
economy it was necessary to readjust the provider rates. Each of the various services
within the Elderly Services provider network has experienced unprecedented increases in
expenditures. Rate increases were being provided as monthly relief payments to

providers based on the number of clients served. These relief payments were included as
an addition to the provider's current years contracted rate.

Clinton County Elderly Services Program
2022 Structural Compliance Review Results

COA Reports
. . 2022 . A Corrective Completed
Clinton County Review Services Findings Action Follow within 30
Provider List Frequency Provided Detail . up
Review Date EmUE Strategy ey Q]
resolution?
Corrective
Action
; Adult Day Incorrect
Active Day of | npn o | 12/28/2022 | Services, ADS | BCl Pl N/A Yes
Cincinnati T . Code completed
ransportation -
closed.
Bayley Adult
Day Annual | 10/04/2022 égf\j}cz‘;‘y N/A N/A NA | A
Program
. Home
gg?rt]?r?uﬁi? unty Delivered
Aotion y Annual | 9/15/2022 Meals, N/A N/A N/A N/A
Proaram Homemaker,
9 Transportation
First
Community Homemaker,
Health Care Annual 6/21/2022 Personal Care, | N/A N/A N/A N/A
Services LLC Respite
(FCHS, LLC)
fgggg' s Annual | 8/26/2022 | Homemaker | NI/A N/A NA | NA
Assisted Care Home Care
by Black Annual 9/19/2022 . N/A N/A N/A N/A
Assistance
Stone
Katy's Home | rnnual | 8/26/2022 | Homemaker | N/A N/A NA | NA
Health Care
Adult Da y Annual 12/20/2022 Services, ADS | N/A N/A N/A N/A
tbay Transportation
Service
People Minor Home
Working Biennial 5/27/2022 e N/A N/A N/A N/A
. Modification
Cooperatively




Structural Compliance Reviews (SCRs) (a highlight indicates a change)

CLINTON COUNTY ESP STRUCTURAL COMPLIANCE REVIEW (SCR) SCHEDULE
2023

(Please find below the list of Clinton County Providers of ESP Services and the tentative dates
for annual review for 2023.)

Clinton County ESP

. Review Type Review Tentative Date

Providers Yp
Active Day of Cincinnati Annual Dec. 2023
American Maid Annual Dec. 2023
Bayley Adult Day Annual Sept. 2023
Cllqton County Community Annual Aug. 2023
Action Program
First Community Health
Care Services LLC (FCHS, Annual Feb. 2023
LLC)
Gabriel's Angels Annual July. 2023
Home Care by Black Stone Annual April. 2023
Home First Annual Dec. 2023
Katy's Home Health Care Annual July. 2023
Oxford Seniors Community .
Adult Day Service Annual April. 2023
People Wprkmg Annual May. 2023
Cooperatively

2023 Draft Request for Proposal (RFP) Schedule

COA has revised the proposed 2023 Request for Proposals (RFPs) schedule. Our intent
is to issue the following RFPs during 2023:

e Title Il — This RFP will also contain Home Delivered Meals and Adult Day
Services, and is proposed to be published at the end of Quarter One

e Home Medical Equipment — proposed to be published in Quarter Three.

¢ In alignment with the goal of program modernization of our meal programs, COA
has made the decision to forego a catering contract as of 10/1/2023.

We will continue to monitor client service needs as the year progresses to determine if
any additional RFPs need to be published this upcoming year.



COA is pleased to announce a new process for Procurement (RFQs, RFIs and RFPSs) in
2023. COA will use Bonfire, a competitive bidding platform for proposal information and
submissions. Electronic Procurement ensures 100% compliance with submission
requirements and leads to evaluation efficiencies.

The RFP evaluations will have 3 categories:

* Financial Analysis and Stability: Proposals will be scored on their agency's
demonstration of financial stability.

* The Organization and Capabilities Overview: Focus will include- emergency
preparedness, quality improvement and service delivery to meet the changing needs of
the older adults. Proposals demonstrating a county presence will receive additional
scoring.

* Pricing: Does the Proposal demonstrate competitive pricing with respect to other
proposals received?



ELDERLY SERVICES PROGRAM (ESPSM) /TITLE III

HOME DELIVERED MEALS

SERVICE SPECIFICATION

EFFECTIVE September-1;2621+-10/1/2023
(BCESP) (CCESP) (HCESP) (WCESP)




ELDERLY SERVICES PROGRAM

HOME DELIVERED MEALS SERVICE SPECIFICATION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION PAGE

O T O o) =T Y= 3
B2 O I U ] o 1) o] Y =1 Y/ (= PP 3
3.0 MeNU Planning. ..ot 4
4.0  AErNative MEalS....uiiiii i e 5
5.0  BUIKMEAIS vttt s e e 6
6.0 Food Sanitation and Safety .......coeiiiiiii e 7
7.0  MEAI DeIIVEIY it e e 8
8.0 EMErgencCy ProCEAUIES ..ottt et e e ern e eanee e 10
0.0 Provider ReqUIrEMENES ..uviiii it r e e e e nannaes 11
O N O I o)/ o [ ol I =11 11 o e 11
11.0 Provider Quality IMprovement. ... ...coieiiiiiii e 12



HOME DELIVERED MEALS SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS

1.0 OBJECTIVE

1.1

1.2

1.3

Home Delivered meals is a meal delivery service based on an
individual’s need for assistance with activities of daily living (ADL's)
and/or instrumental activities of daily living (IADL's) to safely
prepare meals, or ensure meals are prepared to meet the individual’s
dietary needs or specialized nutritional needs, including kosher
meals, as ordered by a licensed healthcare professional within his or
her scope of practice.

Eligibility Criteria: Eligibility is determined by the ESP Care
Manager in accordance with Ohio Administrative Code 173-4-

02 and COA policy.

Home delivered meals are delivered by a nutrition service provider
which is under contract with Council on Aging of Southwestern Ohio.
For all meals the provider must comply with the requirements in the
following rules:

1.3.1 Rule 5160-44-11 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Nursing
facility-based level of care home and community- based
services programs: home delivered meals.

1.3.2 Rule 173-3-07 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws-Older
Americans Act: consumer Contributions

1.3.3 Rule 173-4-05 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Older
Americans Act nutrition program: nutrition projects.

1.3.4 Rule 173-4-05.2 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Older

Americans Act nutrition program: home-delivered meals
3



https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-5160-44-11
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-3-07
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-4-05
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-4-05.2

projects

1.3.5 Rule 173-4-06 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Older
Americans Act nutrition program: diet orders

1.3.6 Rule 173-39-02.14 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- ODA
provider certification: home-delivered meals.

2.0 UNIT OF SERVICE

2.1 A unit of service is one (1) meal that i s delivered i n a single
delivery or a part of a multiple delivery. anrd—prepared—and
:Fd.8||'°eI'IeIE|5 aee_mehsng E.EE. El'.e Elde'l’l Selllnee,s I'e.gl'a'“ .(ESI ”

2.2 The unit rate must be a total of meal cost and frequency of
meal delivery. The unit rate for the meal cost must include
administration, in-kind (as applicable), food production, and

packaging and delivery. ?he—derer—eest—rs—s%ﬁeHy—fthhe

2.3 The frequency of meal delivery will be established by the Care
Manager as a daily delivery or weekly delivery.

e HDM daily delivery: Meals delivered two to five days a week.

e HDM weekly delivery: Meals delivered one day a week.

2.4  TFhe-numberofauthorizedunits-of service-may—vary. Additional

units of service and/or permanent change in delivery schedule
will require prior authorization from the Care Manager=


https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-4-06
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-39-02.14

3.0 MENU PLANNING

3.1

31 Methods forE oo N an ol A ] :

;I |5'e||7' SE“'Ide;'S“E'HSE'IHI';'E'SHIa;'a"eﬁ“ul H';alk.ee':"pl e S.”'H'.'Hlegialgl I

For all meals the provider must comply with the
Requirements of the following rules:

a.

3.2

Rule 5160-44-11 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Nursing facility-
based level of care home and community- based services
programs: home delivered meals.

Rule 173-4-05 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Older Americans Act
nutrition program: nutrition projects.

Rule 173-4-06 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Older Americans Act
nutrition program: diet orders

Meal type options include:

(a) Hot, ready to eat; or reheated at the client’s home by
the meal driver
(b)  Chilled, ready to eat and/or heat

) Frozen, ready to heat {may bea—commerciallyfrozen
e E i h heabl

(d)  Shelf stable

33—TFheProvidermustensure—that all-menu—types—-offered—meet

3.4

he followi : :
(@)—E ¥ SONT ' Dietitian:
(b)—includ £ e cizes £ hfood:

Person Centered Direction: The Provider must offer clients an
opportunity to make a choice about food served and delivery
options.

5


https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-5160-44-11
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-4-05
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-4-06

4.0 ALTERNATIVE MEALS

Definitions:

Diet order means an order for a therapeutic diet from a licensed healthcare
professional whose scope of practice includes ordering these diets.

Therapeutic diet means a diet ordered by a licensed healthcare
professional whose scope of practice includes ordering therapeutic diets,
including:

e As part of the treatment for a disease or clinical condition.



e To modify, eliminate, decrease or increase certain substances in the
diet; or.

e To provide mechanically altered food when indicated.

e Examples of therapeutic diet are Diabetic, Cardiac, Renal, Allergen free,
and Dysphagia.

4.1 For all meals the provider must comply with the
Requirements of the following rules:

a. Rule 5160-44-11 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Nursing facility-
based level of care home and community- based services
programs: home delivered meals.

b. Rule 173-4-05 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Older Americans
Act nutrition program: nutrition projects.

C. Rule 173-4-06 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Older Americans
Act nutrition program: diet orders

4.2 The provider may provide a therapeutic diet to consumer only if the
provider received a diet order for the consumer. Client is responsible for
obtaining the prescription.


https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-5160-44-11
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-4-05
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-4-06

'6”%— ” . . . -
feod-holdsup-onaspeon,netwatery):

Kosher meals:

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

If authorized by a Care Manager, the Provider may furnish
a home delivered kosher meal.

The kosher meal must comply with rule 173-4-05 of
the Ohio Administrative Code as much as possible
while complying with kosher practices for meal preparation
and dietary restriction.

The Provider shall furnish evidence to COA that t h e
home-delivered kosher meals that it furnishes are
certified as kosher by a recognized kosher certification
or a kosher establishment under orthodox rabbinic
supervision.

As some food items are not suitable to be modified,
any menu substitutions must receive approval from a
licensed dietitian and kept on file at COA.




5.0 PROVIDER QUALIFICATIONS
5.1 Provider will comply with the following rules:

a. Rule 5160-44-11 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Nursing
facility-based level of care home and community- based
services programs: home delivered meals.

b. Rule 173-39-02.14 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- ODA
provider certification: home-delivered meals.

5.2 Provider must comply with the Elderly Services Program Conditions of
Participation.

6.0 FOOD SANITATION AND SAFETY



https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-5160-44-11
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-39-02.14

the-client
(b) Inchide ws on_directionsfor-bot! o
prepared-and-self-produced-meals.
(0)_Aretabeled—wit et I I o
6.5 Food| _inelud I ons b f i
venderunlessapproved-by-COA:
6-6—Uponrequest-mealproduction-must-be-accessible to-COAFfor
odi ' orina.

6.0 FOOD SANITATION AND SAFETY

6.1  Provider will comply with rules:
a. Rule 5160-44-11 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Nursing
facility-based level of care home and community- based
services programs: home delivered meals.

b. Rule 173-4-05 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Older
Americans Act nutrition program: nutrition projects.

6.2 Meals shall be labeled with a production date or code and a “use
before” date.

10


https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-5160-44-11
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-4-05

76 MEAL DELIVERY

11



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

The Provider must begin regular meal delivery on a start date
authorized by the Care Manager.

The Provider must deliver meals to clients who need immediate meal

support as authorized by the Care Manager or the ESP Intake and
assessment:

e Within twenty-four (24) hours; or;

e Within a time period negotiated with the ESP Intake and
assessment, not to exceed seventy-two (72) hours.

Use of a commercial or common carrier is not an acceptable means of
delivery, unless prior approval is received from COA.

The Provider shall provide each client with the opportunity to voluntarily
contribute to a meals cost. When soliciting for voluntary contributions,

12



the provider must comply with rule:
a. Rule 173-3-07 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws-Older Americans Act:
consumer Contributions.

8.0 EMERGENCY PROCEDURES

13


https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-3-07

| del hicl ¢ b . . Habiti

8.1 The provider must comply with rule:
a. Rule 173-4-05.2 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Older Americans Act
nutrition program: home-delivered meals projects
b. Provider are expected to replace shelf-stable meals once utilized for
an emergency.

8.2  Consistent with the condition of participation, the provider must notify COA’s
Manager of Procurement and provider services or their designed of any MUI
that involves food borne illness and/or delivery of an unsafe meal within one
hour after the provider becomes aware of the MUI.

a. Provider must develop and implement procedures for assuring the
delivery of safe meals

b. Provider must have a written policy in place should the unfortunate
circumstance occure that an unsafe meal is delivered to one or more
clients.

8.3 The Provider must ensure that delivery persons understand how to
respond to common client in-home emergencies (e.g., client is non-
responsive) or meal-related concerns (e.g. client has not eaten
previous meals). The provider must document any client- related
concerns in the client record and notify the Care Manager.

8.4 The Provider must ensure that delivery persons have and carry a
current valid driver’s license.

90— PROVIDERREQUIREMENTS

14


https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-4-05.2

9.1 Provider must comply with the following rules:

(a) Rule 5160-44-11 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Nursing facility-
based level of care home and community- based services
programs: home delivered meals.

(b) Rule 173-4-05 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws- Older Americans Act
nutrition program: nutrition projects.

410 10.0 PROVIDER QUALITY IMPROVEMENT

111+ 10.1 Consistent with the Conditions of Participation, the Provider
must continuously monitor all aspects of the operation and take
immediate action to improve practices. Aspects required to be
monitored are, at a minimum:

(a) Food temperatures during storage, preparation, transport,
and delivery of food to the client;

(b) Preparation, holding, and delivery practices to ensure
retention of quality food characteristics (e.g., flavor and
texture);

(c) Client satisfaction; provider must elicit comments from
clients regarding satisfaction with food taste, portion size,
appearance and temperature; meal delivery schedule and
meal delivery personnel.

112 10.2 Providers shall develop and implement an annual plan to
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of the program’s

services. In the plan, the Provider shall include:
15


https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-5160-44-11
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-4-05

(a) A review of the existing program;

(b) Satisfaction survey results from clients

(c) Program modifications made that responded to changing
needs or interests of clients, staff or volunteers;

16



ELDERLY SERVICES PROGRAM (ESP")

ADULT DAY SERVICES

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS 2023

EFFECTIVE October 1, 2023
(BCESP)(CCESP)(HCESP)(WCESP)




ADULT DAY SERVICES

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION PAGE
1.0 Objective & Client Eligibility ....c.coiiiiiii e 1
2.0 UNItS Of SEIVICE .. e 2
3.0  Service ReqUIrEMENES vttt i i e s e e 2
4.0 Facility REQUIrEMENTS ... e e aeaneees 4
5.0  Nutrition Requirements for Lunch and Snacks ....cccvceviiiiiiiiiiiiiicnrieeeeaae 4
6.0 Staffing ReqUIrEMENTS. ... . e e e neanens 5
7.0  Client Service Management.......oviieieiiiiiiiriae e e e reeae e eranens 6
8.0  Personnel QUalifiCationNS.......uviiiiiiiii i s 7
9.0 Direct Care Staff Training.......ccoeieiiiii e e e aas 9



1.1

ADULT DAY SERVICES SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS

OBJECTIVE and CLIENT ELIGIBLITY

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Adult Day Service (ADS) is a community-based service designed to
meet the needs of functionally-impaired older adults and to encourage
optimal capacity for self-care and/or maximize functional abilities.

ADS consists of structured, comprehensive and continually-supervised
components that are provided in a protective setting and delivered
based on individualized care plans.

There are two levels of ADS: Enhanced and Intensive. The levels are
based upon the services furnished. Adult Day Service centers must
be certified by Council on Aging of Southwestern Ohio (COA)*™ as
Enhanced or Intensive. A center certified to provide Intensive ADS
meets the certification requirements for the Enhanced level.

The Case/Care Manager assesses the client’s needs and preferences
when determining the client’s appropriateness for ADS and which
level of ADS to approve.

Clients who are eligible for ADS must be enrolled in the ESP program
and meet one of the following criteria:

(a) Cognitive Impairment (i.e. Dementia, Alzheimer's, etc.);

(b) Physical Impairment including:

(i) Impaired mobility (may include a prescription from a
physician for a plan of care, which includes therapies and/or
rehabilitation)

(i) Impairments which do not require therapy, but preclude
clients from attending a senior center, (ie. severe arthritis,
Parkinson's disease, etc.);

(c) The client requires a supervised, supportive environment (may
include medication administration);

(d) The primary caregiver is in need of respite service; or

(e) No community based service/facility available in client’s
community.

pg.1



2.0

UNITS OF SERVICE

Adult Day Service: A unit of service for ADS attendance is measured

(@) One-unit is less than four hours ADS per day which corresponds
to a half-day authorization in the service plan.

(c) A unit of service for ADS attendance does not include the time
it takes to transport the client to/from the center.

(d) A unit of service includes, but is not limited to, administrative
costs, meals/snacks, materials, supplies and labor expenses.

2.1

in time according to the following:

(b)  Two units is four or more hours ADS per day.
2.2 Adult Day Service Transportation:

A unit of service for ADS
transportation is a one-way trip. It is an industry standard that ADS
transportation trips include multiple passengers. Transportation will
be provided directly by the center, unless the provider subcontracts

with another provider

complying _with

the ESP Adult

Day

Transportation Service Specification.

3.0 SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
Enhanced ADS Intensive ADS
Structured Activity Programming Yes Yes
Supervision of all activities of daily living (ADLs) | Yes Yes
Supervision (Hands-on assistance with) of Yes Yes

medication administration

Hands-on assistance with ADL activities

Yes — one or more

Yes, minimum of two

(except bathing)

ADLs (bathing included)

Comprehensive therapeutic activities ((activities
that stimulate the mind and or/muscles are
pre-planned, set-up, and structured within the
written daily activities plan);

Yes

Yes

Monitoring of health status, i.e. blood pressure

Intermittent

screening, weight monitoring, etc.

Reqgular monitoring of
and intervention with
health status i.e., blood
glucose monitoring,
medication dispensing

Hands-on assistance with personal hygiene
activities

Yes (except bathing)

Yes (bathing included)

Health assessments Yes Yes

Social Work Services No Yes — not reimbursable by
COA

Skilled nursing services (e.g., dressing changes No Yes

and other treatments) and rehabilitative

nursing procedures provided by an RN or LPN

under the direction of an RN.

Rehabilitative and restorative services, including No Yes -(skilled services are

physical therapy, speech therapy, and
occupational therapy

not reimbursable by ESP)

pg. 2




4.0

3.1 Transportation: A Provider is required to transport each previde—er

arrange—transportation—fer—a—client to and from the center either
directly or by esubcontract. FhePreviderhastheeptieonofservicinga
zoneandforcountyfor-ADStransportation:

(a)

(b)

(©)

Transportation services include assistance with transfer to and
from the vehicle.

ADS providers must ensure transportation services comply with
the ESP Adult Day Medieal-Transportation service specification.

ADS providers have the option of subcontracting with any COA
contracted ESP, home52, PASSPORT or Title III transportation
provider. The ADS provider must ensure the subcontracted
services comply with the ESP program.

FACILITY REQUIREMENTS

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

The Provider must assure that separate, identifiable space for main
activity areas is available during operational hours if the center is
located in a facility housing other services.

The Provider must furnish evidence that at least sixty (60) square feet
of space is available per client for multipurpose use,—{excluding

hallways, offices, restrooms and storage areas.}-isavailable perclientfor
exclusive-use-of ADS€lients:

The center must have at least one (1) toilet for every ten clients
present that it serves and at least one (1) wheelchair-accessible toilet.

The Provider must store clients’ medications in a locked area that
maintains the temperature requirements of the medications.

The Provider must store toxic substances in an area that is inaccessible
to the clients.

An ADS center certified to provide Intensive ADS services must have
appropriate bathing facilities for clients.

4.64.7The center must comply with the ADA Accessibility Guidelines for

4.8

Buildings and Facilities in appendix A to 28 C.F.R. Part 36.

Daily and monthly planned activities must be announced through

two or more of the following media: pested—in—censpicuous
lecationsthroughout-thecenter:

° Posters in prominent locations throughout the center

° An electronic display (e.qg. television) in a prominent

pg. 3



location in the center.

° The center’s website.

° Direct communication set to clients/caregivers (others)
such as monthly newsletters, email, text, or mail.

5.0 NUTRITION REQUIREMENTS FOR LUNCH AND SNACKS

- i furmish-ad I I I I lined-below:
5.1 The provider shall provide lunch and snacks to each consumer who is
present during lunchtime or snacktime.

5.2 The provision of lunch shall comply with paragraphs (A)(7) to (A)(12)
of Rule 173-4-05 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws and Rule
5160-44-11 - Ohio Administrative Code | Ohio Laws.

)-Meals/Snacksecanbe-oneof the fellowing:)-Seecured fromCOA
contracted-caterer:

ity : :
| Sle;;'eldsé'e'ﬁ“ Ia nznela_l '35' eldu_ee_l o ”E'eeFS |eq|u_||e|nenEs ”I'



https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-173-4-05
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-5160-44-11
https://codes.ohio.gov/ohio-administrative-code/rule-5160-44-11

6.0

STAFFING REQUIREMENTS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

At least two staff must be present in the ADS center when one or
more clients are in attendance. At least one of the two staff must be
paid as direct care staff and at least one staff persons present must
be certified in CPR.

The staff to client ratio must be at least one staff to six clients at
all times.

The provider shall have one RN, or LPN under the direction of an
RN, present whenever a consumer who receives enhanced ADS or
intensive ADS requires components of enhanced ADS or intensive
ADS that fall within a nurse's scope of practice.

The provider shall employ an activity director to direct consumer
activities. The activity director shall have the responsibility of
developing the activity calendar and ensuring activities meet the
requirement.

pg. 5



7.0

CLIENT SERVICE MANAGEMENT

7.1  The Provider must initiate an initial intake assessment of the client
within the first two days of attendance and complete the
assessment within 30 calendar days.

7.2 The initial intake assessment must include the following
components:

(a) Functional and cognitive profiles which also identify ADLs
and instrumental activities of daily living (IADLS) which
require attention or assistance by ADS center staff;

(b) A social profile assessment conducted including social activity
patterns, life events, community services, caregiver data,
formal and informal support systems, and behavior patterns;
and

(c) A health assessment completed for each client within thirty
calendar days of first attendance, conducted by a licensed
healthcare professional whose scope of practice includes
health assessments. The health assessment must include
the client’s psychosocial profile and identify the client’s risk
factors, diet, and medications that—inrcludes,—but—is—net

limited—to,—a—health—profile—including—risk—facters;
psychosecial-profile,diet—medications; and the professional’s

name. The —and—phone number must be documented if the
professional is not a staff member of the provider.

7.3 A care plan must be developed by a licensed healthcare professional
whose scope of practice includes health assessments for each client
within the client’s first thirty days of attendance or ten units of
service, whichever comes first. The—care—plan—mustidentifyThe
care plan must document the following elements:

(a) Interests, preferences and social rehabilitative needs;
(b) Health needs;

(c) Specific goals, objectives and planned interventions of ADS
services that enable the goals; and

(d) A description of the client and/or caregiver involvement
in development of the care plan.

pg. 6



7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

Before administering medications or providing nursing services,
therapeutic meals, nutrition consultation, or therapeutic service(s)
the provider shall obtain a plan of treatment from a licensed healthcare
professional whose scope of practice includes making plans of
treatment. The Provider must obtain the plan of treatment at least
every ninety (90) days for each for client that receives
medications/treatments, nursing services, nutrition consultation,
physical therapy (PT), speech therapy (ST).

therapeutic-rmeal—The provider may provide a therapeutic diet to

a client only if the provider receives a diet prescription from
the client. Client is responsible for obtaining the prescription.
The diet order must be updated any time the diet order is
changed, and verified at least annually. The provider shall comply
with the diet order requirements under rule 173-4-06 of the
Administrative Code.

The daily attendance roster must include documentation of:
(a) Client's name;

(b) Date of Service;

(c) Client’s arrival and departure times;

(d) List cElient's mode of transportation_by the ADS center, name of
subcontractor, family/caregiver; and

(e) Client's signature. and—the——signature—of —the—ADS——staff
persen—If the client is unable to sign, the provider must
document in the client’s file if initials or other mark will be used
for service verification.

The Provider furnishing Intensive Services must document and
maintain a client record of each Intensive Service delivered, i.e.,
bathing, health assessment, skilled nursing, PT, ST. Documentation
must include date of contact, type of contact and name(s) of
person(s) having contact with the client.

The Provider must conduct an interdisciplinary care conference with
the ADS staff that should include the client and/or caregiver at least
every six months and the plan must be revised in accordance with
changes in client status, condition, preferences and response to
service, when applicable. The results of the interdisciplinary care
conference must be documented.

The Care Manager must be invited to participate in the
interdisciplinary care conference and be notified of the date and
time in advance.

pg. 7



8.0 PERSONNEL QUALIFICATIONS

8.1 The Provider must document and retain evidence that ADS
staff possess the following qualifications:

(a) Appropriate, current and valid licensure for all registered
nurses, licensed practical nurses, social workers, physical
therapists, physical therapy assistants, speech therapists,
dietitians, occupational therapists and occupational therapy
assistants or other licensed professionals.

(b)  The activity director must possess one of the following:

(i) A baccalaureate or associate degree in recreational
therapy or a related degree;

(i) A certification from the National Certification Council
of Activities Professionals (NCCAP); or

(iii) A minimum of two years experience as an activity
director or activity assistance in a related position.

i) (iv) Compliance with the qualifications under rule 371-17-07
of the Administrative Code for directing resident
activities in a nursing home.

(c)  Activity program staff must possess one of the following:

(i) Possess a high school diploma or high school
equivalence diploma; or

(i) A minimum of two years experience in a supervised position
providing personal care activities and/or
social/recreational services. under—the—direction—of—a

licensed-er—<certified-health-care professienak:

(d)  Each personal care aide must meet at least one of the
following training or certification requirements prior to client
contact:

(i) Possess a high school diploma or high school
equivalence diploma;

(i) Be listed on the Ohio Department of Health's Nurse
Aide Registry;

(iii) Successfully complete the Nurse Aide Competency
Evaluation Program conducted by the Ohio Department
of Health under Section 3721.31 of the Revised Code;

pg. 8



8.2

8.3

(iv) At least two years of employment in a supervised
position to furnish personal care, to furnish activities, or
to assist with activities; or

(v) The successful completion of a vocational program in
a health or human services field.

Task-based training: Before each new personal care aide provides
an ADS, the provider must provide task-based training and maintain
document to support the training in compliance with 9.3 (a-d).

Each staff member that provides transporation to clients
Transportation——staff must meet all transportation personnel
requirements set forth in the ESP Medical—Adult Day
Transportation Service Specification. The service specification is
available on COA’s website www.help4seniors.org.).

9.0 DIRECT-CARE STAFF TRAINING:

9.1

9.2

9.3

The Provider must provide orientation to all direct care staff prior
to the staff member furnishing any ADS. The Provider shall train the
staff members on:

(a) Expectation of employees;

(b) the employee code of ethics;

(©) an overview of personnel policies;

(d) incident reporting procedures;

(e) agency organization and lines of communication;

(f) emergency-procedures;

(g) task based training; and

(h)  universal precautions for infection control procedures.

Each staff member must participate in at least eight (8) hours of
in-service or continuing education on topics related to their position
annually.

The Provider must retain records showing compliance to the staff
orientation and in-service/continuing education requirements. The
documentation must include:

(a) the instructor’'s name, title, qualifications, and signature;

(b) the date and time of instruction;

(c) the content of the instruction; and

(d) the name and signature of the direct care staff member
completing the training.

pg. 9


http://www.help4seniors.org/

ELDERLY SERVICES PROGRAM (EspP*")

ADULT DAY TRANSPORTATION

SERVICE SPECIFICATION

2023

EFFECTIVE October 2023
(BCESP, CCESP, HCESP, WCESP)




ELDERLY SERVICES PROGRAM

ADULT DAY TRANSPORTATION

SERVICE SPECIFICATION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION TITLE SECTION

Objective ..o 1.0.........l.
Unit of Service....coooviiiiii e 2.0 ..ciennens
Provider RequirementsS......cccoiiiviiiiiiiieiiiennnns 3.0 e,
TraiNiNg voviii i s N O
Driver Requirements .......ovviiiiiiiiiiininnieeenss 50. i,
ADPENTIX A e
ADPENIX B ...

Appendix C

Page 2|13



ADULT DAY TRANSPORTATION SERVICE SPECIFICATION

1.0 OBJECTIVE

2.0

3.0

1.1

Adult Day Medieal-Transportation is a service designed to enable
a client to gain access to and from the adult day center..

(a) Transportation may-will be provided directly by the center,
unless the center subcontracts with another provider
complying to this rule. te—the—pharmacy—after—the

ot : feal : .

(b) It is an industry standard that ADS transportation trips
include multiple passengers. Transportation services are
not provided when a client has been under anesthesia or
when a client is being admitted to or discharged from a
hospital or rehabilitation facility.

UNIT OF SERVICE

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

A unit of service is a "one-way" trip.

The unit rate is the price quoted for the “one-way” trip.

The unit rate must include, but not be Ilimited to, all
administrative costs, training and other costs associated with

maintaining a fleet of vehicles.

Additional units require prior authorization from Care/Case
Management.

PROVIDER REQUIREMENTS

Provider requirements include the following:

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

The Provider must furnish evidence of a service back-up plan to
provide service when a driver is unavailable or when a vehicle
becomes disabled.

All vehicle operators and owners must maintain proof of financial
responsibility as required in Section 4509.10.1 of the Ohio
Revised Code.

A copy of the certificate of insurance and the vehicle
registration must be maintained in each vehicle.

The Provider must have a written plan for regularly scheduled
maintenance and safety inspection for the vehicles in service
and must document compliance with the plan.

Page 3|13



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

The Provider must assure that each vehicle is inspected every
twelve months by a certified mechanic, the state highway patrol,
or the Ohio Medical Transportation Board, and is certified to be
safe. The inspections must include the elements as outlined
on the Annual Inspection Form ODAO0004.1.pdf (ohio.gov)

ef-this—rule, as applicable to the vehicle inspected.

The Provider must assure that all vehicles are easily identifiable
with the Provider's name.

The Provider must assure that all vehicle drivers have identification
badges or uniforms identifying them as employees of the Provider.

Service Delivery

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

Assist in transfer of the client, as necessary, safely from
client’s door to the vehicle and from the vehicle to the street
level entrance of the destination point. The driver must
perform the same transfer assist service when
transporting the client back to the client’s residence. All
hands-on escorting of all passengers including entry and
exit of the vehicle must be done in compliance with training
received.

Vehicles equipped for transporting a passenger who
remains in a wheelchair must be equipped with
permanently installed floor wheelchair restraints for each
wheelchair position used. Providers must inspect their
vehicles for compliance with the items listed_on the Daily
Vehicle Inspection Form APPENDIX A (ohio.gov) in

Appendb<B-on a daily basis.

Transfers of a passenger who remains in a wheelchair must
be conducted in a safe manner.

All transportation providers/drivers are expected to arrive
at the pick-up/drop-off location at the predetermined time
with the correct vehicle type. All transportation services are
expected to have on time arrivals and departures.
Acceptable limits for the service are +/-10 minutes.

There is to be no smoking, vaping, or use of smokeless
tobacco in any vehicle transporting customers or clients.

Transportation is to be conducted in a manner that is safe
and courteous. Any reported aggressive driving behaviors
including speeding, cell phone usage while driving, or tablet
usage while driving will be investigated and logged.
Substantiated reports may result in corrective action.

Page 413


https://aging.ohio.gov/wps/wcm/connect/gov/1938d578-3d49-4d70-8b5d-53b59ecdf306/ODA0004.1.pdf?MOD=AJPERES&CVID=n3Qlyhm
https://aging.ohio.gov/wps/wcm/connect/gov/97aa1e70-f67b-4f44-b03f-e013f95732ee/ODA0008_2019-02-01.pdf?MOD=AJPERES&CVID=n3QlLhR

3.9

The Provider ADS center— may use the daily attendance
roster as evidence of service delivery. In order to
support services delivered by the center or the
subcontractor, the roster must include: must—rmmaintain

decumentationforecachepisode—of service-delivery-thatincludes_
(@) A-deseription-of-the-serviceprovidedClient’'s name;
(b) Fhe-date-Date of Service;

(c) Fhelocationof-thepick—upClient’s arrival and departure

times;

(d) Fhe-time-of thepiek-upClient’s mode of transportation i.e.

ADS center, name of subcontractor, family/caregiver; and

fe)—Fhelocationof-the-deliveryClient’s signature and the

signature of the ADS staff person. If the client is unable
to sign, the provider must document in the client’s file if
initials or other mark will be used for service verification

@ Thet  the del
(@)— o ¢ the dri

4.0 TRAINING

4.1

The Provider must assure and document in driver’s file, prior to
transporting clients, that each driver meets all of the following
requirements:

(@) Current certificates of completion of training courses in first
aid and cardio-pulmonary resuscitation (CPR) offered by
the American Red Cross, the American Heart Association,
the National Safety Council, or an equivalent course
approved by Council on Agingsm.

(b) Evidence of return demonstration on:

(i) Client transfers;

Page 513



5.0

(ii) Wheelchair lift operation; and
(iii) Restraint application

(c) Training on Universal Precautions

4.2  Within six months of hire, all drivers must have one of
the following passenger assistance training courses:

(@) A certificate of completion of the Passenger Assistance
Safety and Sensitivity (PASS) Training
https://ctaa.org/pass/. A refresher course is required
every three years thereafter.

(b) A certificate of completion of the DRIVE Training
http://www.coaaa.org/cms/education/drive-training. A
refresher course is required every three years thereafter.

DRIVER REQUIREMENTS

The Provider must maintain documentation that all
transportation drivers have the following:

5.1 At least two years of verified licensed driving experience; and the
driver has the ability to understand written and oral instructions
and document services delivered.

5.2 A current and valid driver’s license with fewer than six points
against the driver issued under Chapters 4506 or 4507 of the
Ohio Revised Code or their equivalent if the operator is a resident
of another state;

5.3 Assurance that drivers:

(a) Maintain a safety checklist that includes items listed in
on the Daily Vehicle Inspection Form APPENDIX A (ohio.gov).
Appendix—C—ofthis—+ule—that—The form must be
completed each day by the driver or designated staff prior
to transporting client(s).

(b) Maintain service logs or trip sheets daily as defined in
Section 3.10.

(©) Hands-on assistance as outlined in Section 3.8 (a).

5.4  Furnish documentation to verify an annual Bureau of Motor Vehicle
check is completed on each driver.

5.5 Provide a valid copy of a signed statement from a licensed

physician acting within the scope of the physician's practice

declaring that the applicant does not have a medical or physical

condition, including vision impairment, that cannot be corrected
Page 6]13


https://ctaa.org/pass/
http://www.coaaa.org/cms/education/drive-training
https://aging.ohio.gov/wps/wcm/connect/gov/97aa1e70-f67b-4f44-b03f-e013f95732ee/ODA0008_2019-02-01.pdf?MOD=AJPERES&CVID=n3QlLhR

and could interfere with safe driving, passenger assistance, and
emergency treatment activity, or could jeopardize the health
and welfare of a client or the general public.

5.6 Provide the results of a chemical test or tests of the driver's
blood, breath, or urine conducted at a hospital or other
laboratory licensed by the Ohio Department of Health for the
purpose of determining the alcohol and drug content of the
applicant’s blood, breath and/or urine.

Note: An applicant/employee with a valid ambulette license or
EMT/First responder certification is deemed to meet the requirements
in Sections 4.0, 5.0, and the ESP Free Database Reviews and
Criminal Records Check rules. The Ohio Medical Transportation
Board verifies the above requirements every three years.

Page 7113



Page 8|13



Page 913



Page 10|13



Page 11|13



Page 12113



Adult Day Transportation - October 2023

13



Clinton County ESP (Senior Services Levy)
Maximum Reimbursement Rates
Rates as of February 1, 2023

Service

Adult Day Service - Transportation

Adult Day Service - (Enhanced)

Consumer Directed Care

Electronic Monitoring System - (VTC/Camera)
Home Delivered Meals (Kosher - Daily)

Home Medical Equipment (Lift Chair X-Large)
Home Care Assistance

* Consumer Directed Care will change 6/1/2022
* Home Delivered Meals change is effective 5/1/2022
* Home Care Assistance change is effective 1/1/2023

Cost per
Unit
N/A
N/A

3.75
41.00
15.94

1,362.00

9.06

Unit
One Way Trip
Per 1/2 Day
Per 15 min
Per 1/2 Month
Per Meal
Per Unit
Per 15 min



2023 Sliding Fee Scale Effective 4/1/2022

1 Person 2 People 3 People 4 People 5 People 6 People

FPL (103:/;) $ 14,580 $ 19,720 $ 24,860 $ 30,000 $ 35,140 $ 40,280
Copay Min Max Min Max Min Max Min Max Min Max Min Max
0% $ -|$ 1823 Q% - 2465 0 $ -|$ 3108 @ $ - 3750 @ $ -|$ 4393 - 5,035
5% $ 1824($ 1981 @ $ 2466 2680 @$ 3109($ 3378 @$ 3,751 4077 @ $ 4394|$ 4776 @ $ 5,036 5,474
10%@ $ 1982|$ 2142 @ $ 2,681 2897 @$ 3379($ 3652 $ 4,078 4407 @S 4777|$ 5162 $ 5475 5,917
15%@ $ 2143 |$ 2302 @ $ 2,898 3114 $ 3653($ 3925 $ 4,408 4737 @ $ 5163 |$ 5549 % 5918 6,360
20%@$ 2303($ 2463 @$ 3,115 3331 @ $ 3926($ 4199 @ $ 4,738 5067 @ $ 5550($ 5935@$ 6,361 6,803
25%@ $ 2464 |$ 2623 @ $ 3,332 3548 @$ 4200($ 4472 $ 5,068 5397 @$ 5936($ 6322$ 6,804 7,246
30%@ $ 2624($ 2783 @ $ 3,549 3765 @ $ 4473($ 4746 @ $ 5,398 5727 @ $ 6,323($ 6708 @ $ 7,247 7,689
35%@ $ 2784 ($ 2944 W$ 3,766 3981 @S 4747($ 5019@$ 5728 6,057 $ 6,709($ 7095@$ 7,69 8,133
40%B$ 2945|$ 3,104 @$ 3,982 4198 @ $ 5020|$ 5293 @ $ 6,058 6387 $ 709%($ 7481 @S 8134 8,576
45%@ $ 3,105|$ 3,264 $ 4,199 4,415 $ 5294 (8% 5,566 $ 6,388 6,717 $ 7482(% 7,868 $ 8,577 9,019
50%@ $ 3.265($ 3425 @ $ 4416 4632 @$ 5567 |$%$ 5840@$ 6718 7047 @S 7869($ 8254 @$ 9,020 9,462
55%@ $ 3426($ 3585 @ $ 4,633 4849 % 5841|$ 6113 @$ 7,048 73770 $ 8255($ 8641 S$ 9463 9,905
60%M $ 3586 ($ 3746 @ $ 4,850 5066 @$ 6114($ 6387 @$ 7,378 7707 @ $ 8642($ 9027 $ 9,906 10,348
65%@ $ 3747 ($ 3906 @ $ 5,067 5283 $ 6388($ 6660 % 7,708 8037 l$ 9028($ 9414 $ 10,349 10,791
70%@ $ 3,907 ($ 4066 @$ 5,284 5500 0l $ 6661($ 6933 $ 8,038 8367MS$ 9415($ 9801 @ $ 10,792 11,234
75%@ $ 4,067 ($ 4227 @$ 5,501 5717 @ $ 6,934 ($ 7207 $ 8,368 8697 @ $ 9802($ 10187 @ $ 11,235 11,677
80%M $ 4.228($ 4387 @$ 5718 59034 W% 7208($ 7480 $ 8,698 9,027 @ $ 10,188 ($ 10574 @ $ 11,678 12,120
85%W $ 4388 ($ 4548 @$ 5935 6151 $ 7481($ 7754 @ $ 9,028 9,357 @'$ 10,575 ($ 10,960 @ $ 12,121 12,563
90%M$ 4549|$ 4708 @S 6,152 6368 @S 7755($ 8027 @$ 9,358 9,687 @ $ 10,961 ($ 11,347 @ $ 12,564 13,006
95%M $ 4709($ 4868 $ 6,369 6585 $ 8028($ 8301 $ 9,688 10,017 @ $ 11,348 |$ 11,733 @ $ 13,007 13,449
100% @ $ 4869|$ 5029 @$ 6,586 6,801 $ 8302($ 8574 $ 10,018 10347 @ $ 11,734 |$ 12,120 @ $ 13,450 13,893




Public Meeting Requirements

January 2023

The ESP Advisory Council is classified as a public meeting and is subject to Ohio Sunshine Law
requirements.

The following is a summary of the requirements that apply to public meetings:

1. Meetings can be hybrid, but must include an in-person option, including permitting the
public to attend in-person. No public meeting can by 100% virtual.

2. Members must be present in person (not virtual) to be counted as part of the quorum
and to vote on any issue considered at the meeting. Members may attend and
participate virtually, but cannot vote and will not be counted as part of the quorum.
Members must notify COA in advance if they will participate in person, or virtually, so
we can determine if we meet the quorum thresholds.

3. Meetings must be open and accessible to the public and for individuals with disabilities.
Members of the public have a right to be heard (but not be disruptive) during public
meetings.

5. The meeting must be announced a minimum of 24 hours in advance. The
announcement must include the meeting time, place and purpose. COA posts all
meeting information and materials including the agenda on the COA website:
https://www.help4seniors.org/news-events/public-meetings.

6. Full and accurate minutes (not verbatim) must be taken that include facts and relevant
information that reflect the rationale for decisions. Minutes must be available to the
public. COA publishes minutes on the website with the meeting materials.

Executive Session is limited to certain personnel matters, purchase or sale of property, pending
or imminent court action, security matters, collective bargaining or certain matters that are
required per federal or state law to be kept confidential.

A complete set of sunshine law requirements can be found at:

https://www.ohioattorneygeneral.gov/Files/Publications-Files/Publications-for-Legal/Sunshine-
Laws-Publications/2022-Sunshine-Manual.aspx



https://www.help4seniors.org/news-events/public-meetings
https://www.ohioattorneygeneral.gov/Files/Publications-Files/Publications-for-Legal/Sunshine-Laws-Publications/2022-Sunshine-Manual.aspx
https://www.ohioattorneygeneral.gov/Files/Publications-Files/Publications-for-Legal/Sunshine-Laws-Publications/2022-Sunshine-Manual.aspx

Clinton County Elderly Services Program
2023
CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

INTRODUCTION

This policy shall apply to the Clinton County Elderly Services Advisory Council. The Advisory Council
recognizes that any real or perceived conflict of interest on behalf of the Advisory Council could impair
the ability of the Clinton County Elderly Services Program to carry out its mission. The Advisory Council
has adopted this conflict of interest policy as a guide for Clinton County Elderly Services Program’s
standard conduct as it relates to potential conflicts of interest.

DEFINITIONS

1. "Family" means a person's spouse, partner, child, parent, brother, sister, grandchild,
stepparent, stepchild, stepbrother, stepsister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law,
daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law.

2. “Staff” means an employee of an agency that conducts business with the Clinton County Elderly
Services Program.

3. A person shall be considered to have a financial interest in a matter if it could result in a
financial benefit or detriment of more than $1,000 to him or his family. A person shall be
considered to have a financial interest in any business entity in which he or a member of his
family owns a 5% or more interest or in which he is an officer or policy-making employee.

4. A person shall be considered to have a personal interest in a matter if his or her judgment is
substantially influenced in fact or by appearance by concerns other than those of the Clinton
County Elderly Services Program; also, a personal interest exists if they sit on the Board, serve in
management or leadership, or any agency under contract with the Clinton County Elderly
Services Program or Administrator.

5. A business entity shall be deemed "related to a contract agency" if agency board or staff
creates the entity, if agency funds are used to create the entity, or if agency funds or staff are
used in the operation of the entity.

STANDARDS

Clinton County Elderly Services Advisory Council Members shall:

Exercise their professional judgment solely for the benefit of the Clinton County Elderly Services
Program and their stakeholders, free from any adverse or conflicting personal or financial interests.



Refrain from using or authorizing the use of the authority of their positions to secure anything of
value or the promise or offer of anything of value that manifests a substantial and improper
influence upon them with respect to their duties. No board or council member may either solicit or
accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from grant recipients, potential grant
recipients, contractors, potential contractors, or parties to sub-agreements.

Abstain from voting on any matter in which they and/or a family member have a personal or
financial interest.

Promptly inform the Advisory Council of any personal or financial interest of which they are aware
which may influence their decisions. Such disclosure shall occur at least annually and at any other
time that Clinton County Elderly Services Advisory Council considers any matter involving a
business entity in which the board member has an interest.

Refrain from participating in the selection, award, or administration of a grant if real or perceived
conflicts of interest exist.

In addition:

No person shall serve concurrently as an employee or board member of a contracted provider and
as a board or advisory council member of Clinton County Elderly Services Program without full
disclosure to Clinton County Elderly Services Advisory Council.

No person shall serve as a contract agency board member whose family member is an employee of
Clinton County Elderly Services Program/Administrator or serves on the Clinton County Elderly
Services Program and Administrator Board without full disclosure to Clinton County Elderly Services
Advisory Council.

EXCEPTIONS

1. Upon disclosure of any violation of these standards, Clinton County Elderly Services Advisory
Council or the board of any agency may ratify any action it has taken without knowledge of the
violation by a majority vote of disinterested board members.

2. No contract or transaction undertaken by a board without knowledge of the breach of one of
these standards shall be void or voidable except as provided in Ohio Revised Code Section
1702.301.

3. Attached is Conflict of Interest reporting form:

Form |
For reporting by Clinton County Elderly Services Program Advisory Council. Must be completed

by each Clinton County Elderly Services Program Advisory Council member when elected or
appointed. A new form should be completed if a subsequent conflict arises.



FORM I

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

(For reporting by the Clinton County Elderly Services Advisory Council)

| have received and read the "Conflict of Interest" policy of the Clinton County Elderly
Services Program. | have no conflict of interest. (*)

| have received and read the "Conflict of Interest" policy of the Clinton County Elderly
Services Program and disclose the following:

| certify that the above information is true to the best of my knowledge and that | have no other
conflict to report at this time. | further certify that | will abide by the terms of the conflict of
interest policies of the Clinton County Elderly Services Advisory Council and will report any new
conflict of interest when it arises.

Date Signature

Printed Name

(*) A conflict of interest exists if:

1. You are a board member of both a contract agency and the Clinton County Elderly Services Advisory Council itself;

2. You are a member of Clinton County Elderly Services Advisory Council and also on its staff or the staff of a contract
agency;

3. You have a family member on a contract agency’s board or staff;
4. You have a family member on the staff of Clinton County Elderly Services Program;
5. You have a personal interest in a matter before Clinton County Elderly Services Program; or

6. You or your family member has a financial interest of $1,000 or more, or owns 5% or more of, or is an officer or
policy-making employee of a business entity doing business with Clinton County Elderly Services Program.



Council on Aging of Southwestern Ohio

ﬁ\ 4601 Malsbary Road
Blue Ash, Ohio 45242

‘ OA (513) 721-1025 or (800) 252-0155
www.help4seniors.org

Council on Aging

Confidentiality Policy for Board and Advisory Council Members, Volunteers and Affiliates of
Council on Aging

Respecting the privacy of our clients, donors, members, staff, volunteers and of Council on Aging (COA)
itself is a basic value of COA. Personal, health and financial information is confidential and should not be
disclosed or discussed with anyone without permission or authorization from COA in accordance with the
HIPAA Privacy and Security Rule.

Board and council members, volunteers and affiliates are cautioned to demonstrate professionalism, good
judgment, and care to avoid unauthorized or inadvertent disclosures of confidential information and
should, for example, refrain from discussing confidential information in public spaces and from leaving
confidential information contained in documents or on computer screens in plain view.

Board and council members, volunteers and affiliates of COA may be exposed to information which is
confidential and/or privileged and proprietary in nature. It is the policy of COA that such information must
be kept confidential both during and after affiliation or volunteer service. Affiliates and volunteers,
including board and advisory council members, are expected to return materials containing privileged or
confidential information at the time of separation from affiliation or expiration of service.

Unauthorized disclosure of confidential or privileged information is a serious violation of this policy and
will subject the person(s) who made the unauthorized disclosure to appropriate discipline, including
removal/dismissal.

Acknowledgement of Confidentiality of Client Information

| agree to treat all information about clients, donors, members, staff, volunteers and COA itself that | learn
during my affiliation or service with COA as confidential and | understand that it would be a violation of
policy to disclose such information to anyone without prior COA authorization in accordance with the
HIPAA Privacy and Security Rule.

Signature of Affiliate/Volunteer

Date Name

H:\Boards and Advisory Councils\Confidentiality Form



	Program Dashboard & Financial Report.pdf
	1 CC CoverPage
	2.CC Summary REV
	3.1TraditionCensusTrends.CC
	4.2 ESP Service Trends CC
	5.FTH Census Trends CC
	6.2 FTH Service Trends CC REV2
	7.3 PERFORM TREND CC
	10.CC CostSavingsFINAL
	8.4 Financials Blank CC
	9.Notes Page CC




